
 
 
Lancashire Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 
 
Monday, 7th February, 2022 at 10.00 am, Virtual Zoom Meeting  
 

 
Agenda 
 
No. Item  
 
Part 1 (Open to Press and Public) 
 
1. Apologies   

 
 

2. Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 November 2021   (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

3. RE Update Report   (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

4. SACRE Newsletter - Spring 2022   (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

5. SACRE Development Plan 2021-2023   (Pages 15 - 24) 
 

6. Observers' Contributions  
  

 

7. Members' News  
  

 

8. Correspondence   (Pages 25 - 26) 
 

9. Date of Next Meeting    

 The next scheduled meeting of the SACRE will be held 
at 10.00am on Monday 25 April 2022. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Paul Bond 

Clerk to the SACRE 
 

County Hall 
Preston 
 
 

 

 





 

 

 

 

Lancashire Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 29th November, 2021 at 10.00 am 
in Zoom Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
 
Attendees 
 
Teachers Associations                   The Chair, Mr Peter Martin (ASCL) 
         Julie Gordon (ATL) 
 
Lancashire County Council           County Councillor Anne Cheetham 
                                                          County Councillor Nweeda Khan 
 
Church of England                          Mr John Wilson 
                                                          Mrs Helen Sage 
                                                          Mrs Joan O'Rourke 
 
Blackburn Diocesan Board of       Mrs Lisa Fenton 
Education 
 
Hinduism                                         Mrs Harsha Shukla 
 
Methodist                                        Professor Alan Gillies 
 
Islam                                                Ahmed James 
 
Judaism                                           Robert Ash 
 
University of Cumbria                    Rebekah Ackroyd 
 
Co-optee Non-Voting 
 
LASGB                                             Mrs Kathleen Cooper 
 
Community Representatives 
 
Burnley Building Bridges               Sajda Majeed MBE 
                                                                                                               
Observers 
 
Humanists                                        Keith Pennington 
 
Officers 
 
Mrs Alison Lloyd – School Advisor, Lancashire County Council 
Dave Gorman – Senior Democratic Services Officer, Lancashire County 
Council 
Garth Harbison – Democratic Services Officer, Lancashire County 
Council 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

 

1.   Annual General Meeting: Election of Chair and Deputy Chair 
 

Peter Martin was proposed and seconded to be elected as Chair and County 
Councillor Anne Cheetham was proposed and seconded to be elected as Vice 
Chair. 
 
The Chair thanked the previous Vice Chair, County Councillor Yousuf Motala, for 
all his hard work and support. 
 
2.   Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from County Councillors Stewart Jones and Yousuf 
Motala, and Ben McMullan. 
 
3.   Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 September 2021 

 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 27 September 2021 were agreed as a 
true and accurate record. 
 
4.   Draft Annual Report 

 
An Annual report had to be produced every year on the work of the SACRE. This 
year the Lancashire SACRE had been advised by the NASACRE of a new 
standardised report format which has been agreed by the Department for 
Education.  
 
Alison Lloyd had created the draft Annual Report on recollections of what had 
happened and information gathered. Members were asked to look through the 
new SACRE Annual Report Framework to see if anything had been missed out or 
could be worded better. Normally what happened was that the SACRE would 
feedback their comments to Alison and at the QSS meeting in January the final 
document would be shared and later would be sent to the NASACRE and the DfE 
as the final report had to be in by the end of January.  
 
The report included all that happened at the Lancashire SACRE meetings in the 
academic year from September 2020 to August 2021. It was pointed out that the 
September 2021 meeting was also included in the report. This was because a lot 
of the things the SACRE had done in the year were about working towards the 
new Lancashire Agreed Syllabus which had been discussed at the September 
2021 meeting. 
 
Regarding the Agreed Syllabus Conference, the report made note of the expert 
advice of Joanne Harris (Head of Humanities at Broughton High School / LCC RE 
Associate Consultant) and Lat Blaylock (RE Today). 
 
The syllabus was not just used by Lancashire Maintained Schools but also by a 
number of academies and the maintained schools of other local authorities. 
 

Page 2



 

 

 

The report stated that it was a statutory role of the SACRE to monitor the 
standards and the quality of RE provision in schools. 
 
Regarding 'Requests for Withdrawal from Religious Education', there was no 
entry for this in the report at the moment. Schools had been asked to submit their 
data by 3 December 2021. This data would be discussed at the next QSS 
meeting. 
 
The report stated that the Lancashire SACRE continued to maintain positive links 
with a number of agencies. Regarding Diocesan Groups it was felt that links with 
the Lancashire Methodist District should be included. It was felt that there should 
be more information included for all the agencies.  
 
Under the section 'Local SACRE Involvement', it was felt it was important to 
explain what Building Bridges was and its origin. It was important to have more 
information on events that took place across the county during Interfaith Week. It 
was also important to note what was happening within the dioceses across 
Lancashire. 
 
It was felt that the report gave an excellent overview of how, in difficult times, the 
Lancashire SACRE had managed to adapt and modify in order to deliver and 
support Lancashire schools effectively. 
 
It was agreed by SACRE members to put this draft report forward to the QSS 
Group to finalise. 
 
5.   Website Monitoring Feedback 

 
Alison informed members that she had received some findings from Kathleen 
Cooper who stated that it had been an interesting and thought provoking process. 
Kathleen had electronically highlighted the evaluation documents showing how 
each school was rated and what her judgements were on their websites. 
 
Alison requested that other members send their findings to her so that they could 
be looked at in the next QSS meeting and then report back to the next full 
SACRE meeting. 
 
6.   Online Training Feedback 

 
The feedback referred to two elements of online training: 
 

i. Training that was available for members of the SACRE through the 
NASACRE website. 

ii. Training available to RE teachers in Lancashire in respect of the new 
syllabus. 

 
Members were informed that 60 people had attended the online training for RE 
teachers in Lancashire on the new syllabus. There was another training session 
for people who could not attend this earlier session and 91 people attended. 

Page 3



 

 

 

There had been no formal evaluation as it had been all online. Feedback 
received was that teachers were keen to get to grips with the syllabus. Interest in 
the syllabus and the fact it was so clearly structured had been very helpful for 
teachers. 
 
The online training that was available for SACRE members had included training 
on World Issues. This training had been very interesting and wide ranging. It was 
also thought to be quite academic, opened your eyes to world views and was 
helpful to hear. Within each religion there were different approaches and world 
views. If you were not religious you still had your own world views. 
 
7.   Funding for Academies 

 
 Members were informed that Lancashire had made the new syllabus free to all 
academies so they did not have to buy it in. It was freely available to all 
academies within Lancashire. 
 
It was suggested that a letter be written from the SACRE to all Lancashire 
academies informing them of the availability of the new Lancashire Agreed 
Syllabus.  
 
8.   Pupil Voice Survey 

 
The SACRE was informed that the QSS was impressed with the openness of the 
questions of the survey. Thanks was given to Helen Sage for sending some 
useful documents to help with forming the survey. 
 
Alison Lloyd was open to feedback and comments on the survey. School 
consultants had been asked to trial the survey in their schools. 
 
Alison was thanked for putting the Pupil Voice Survey together. 
 
9.   Application for a Determination Proforma 

 
If a school wanted to have worship which was not mainly Christian in nature for 
example, it had to apply to the SACRE for permission to do so and this was 
called a Determination. A Determination lasted for 5 years before it had to be 
resubmitted. It was pointed out that the last time the Lancashire SACRE had a 
single Determination was about 15 years ago. Every school had the right to ask 
for a Determination. Schools that were not maintained schools in Lancashire did 
not apply to the SACRE for a Determination. Academies would apply to the 
Academy Trust for a Determination. 
 
The Chair pointed out that in all his years on the Lancashire SACRE there had 
only been one school that had applied for a determination and after three years it 
had withdrawn its request for a determination. The SACRE had still to be aware 
that there may be maintained schools in Lancashire where circumstances arose 
that the school felt it was appropriate to apply for a determination so there 
needed to be a proper proforma for this. 

Page 4



 

 

 

 
Alison had looked at lots of different examples from elsewhere in order to put this 
Determination proforma together. It was vital to have this proforma available for 
schools. 
 
10.   Collective Worship in Lancashire Schools Guidelines 

 
The Collective Worship in Lancashire Schools Guidelines had been tidied up and 
amended slightly. The last time the document was circulated it had all the 
additions and changes marked on it. Since then, it had been looked at again 
twice and these had now been removed. The final document was now uploaded 
to the RE website. 
 
The document was carefully compartmentalised into collective worship in the life 
of the school, management of collective worship, development of collective 
worship and the delivery of collective worship. Any school should find this a very 
comprehensive document. 
 
The Lancashire SACRE welcomed the Collective Worship in Lancashire Schools 
Guidelines presented at the meeting as the final document. 
 
11.   Correspondence 

 
The Chair, Peter Martin, informed members that he had email correspondence 
with one of the Teacher Associations, the NASUWT, who were proposing a new 
representative for their professional association. The teacher that had been put 
forward was not an employee of Lancashire County Council and therefore not 
eligible to be a representative of the NASUWT on the Lancashire SACRE and a 
suitable replacement was now being looked for. 
 
12.   Members' News 

 
Helen Sage informed the SACRE, that as part of Interfaith Week, the Knife Angel 
had been a valuable part of the week. The Knife Angel had reached over 16,000 
pupils across Lancashire. 
 
Building Bridges had a number of events during Interfaith week that had been 
well attended. 
 
Also during Interfaith Week, Ahmed James had given a presentation on Islam 
and Afrocentrism which had been well received. Ahmed was looking forward to 
doing this on a regular basis. It was suggested that he make the presentation to 
the SACRE in the future. 
 
13.   Observers' Contributions 

 
There was no Observers' Contributions. 
 
 

Page 5



 

 

 

14.   Proposed Dates of Meetings in 2022 
 

The proposed dates of meetings in 2022 were agreed. 
 
15.   Date of Next Meeting 

 
The next scheduled meeting of the Lancashire SACRE would be held at 10:00am 
on Monday 7 February 2022. 
 
 
 
 Paul Bond 

Clerk to the SACRE  
  
County Hall 
Preston 

 

 

Page 6



 

Report to Lancashire SACRE: February 2022 

 The following training opportunities are planned for the spring term: 

 

1. 25th February 2022 – Subject Leader training for the Yarrow Schools Teaching Alliance (30 schools) 

2. 25th March 2022- training for trainee teachers who access the School Centred Initial teacher training 

programme (SCITT)  

3. Assessment training for all key stages to support schools in submitting secure summative end of key 

stage outcomes and establishing effective formative assessment procedures  

https://lpds.lancashire.gov.uk/courses.asp?subject=REL  

 

 The SACRE annual report has now been submitted to the DFE/ NASACRE following scrutiny at the 

Quality and Standards Sub Committee 

http://www.lancsngfl.ac.uk/curriculum/re/index.php?category_id=79  

 

 The spring 22 RE newsletter has been circulated and is attached. 

 

 A survey has been sent to special schools in authorities that use our syllabus. We are gathering views on 

what adaptions are needed and what training would be welcomed to enable teachers to best meet the 

needs of their pupils. 

 

 A range of new subject leader resources are now available to teachers:  pupil voice monitoring tool, 

quality of education evaluation proforma, model policy document, website evaluation tool. 

 

 The QSS intend to amend the NASACRE website evaluation tool following feedback after a trial run in 

the autumn term.  

 

 Actions taken to date have been highlighted on the current SACRE Development Plan – attached. 

Lancashire SACRE 

Monitoring of Ofsted Reports published between  

1st September 2021 – 21st January 2022. 

Primary  

51 reports were published in total; 18 were inspections of community or voluntary controlled schools. The 
quality of religious education is not mentioned in any report. 

Banks Methodist (VC):  Section 8 – remains a good school. 
 
Pupils have opportunities to learn about different faiths and cultures. This helps them to respect differences 
between people. Pupils learn about British values, including democracy. 
 
Banks St Stephens (VC): Section 5 OE: Good 
 
They understand the importance of tolerance and respect for the views of others. 
 
Bowerham Primary and Nursery: Section 5 OE: Good  
 
Pupils understand the importance of tolerance and mutual respect. Page 7

Agenda Item 3

https://lpds.lancashire.gov.uk/courses.asp?subject=REL
http://www.lancsngfl.ac.uk/curriculum/re/index.php?category_id=79


 
Brookfield Community: Section 8 – Outcome 3  
 
Deepdale Community: Section 5 OE: Good  
 
Fishwick: Section 8 – remains a good school. 
 
Gisburn Road Community: Section 8 – remains a good school  
 
Higham St Johns (VC): Section 8 – remains a good school 
 
Holme Primary: Section 8 – remains a good school 
 
Ingol Community: Section 5- OE: Good  
 
Lancaster Road:  Section 8- remains a good school 
 
Pupils know that people come from families, faiths and cultures that may be different from their own. They 
respect and celebrate these differences. 
 
Leyland Methodist Junior: Section 5 – OE: Good  
 
Longsands Community: Section 8- remains a good school  
 
Lytham Hall Park: Section 5 – OE: Outstanding  
 
Pupils know how to build and maintain healthy relationships. They talk confidently about faiths and beliefs that 
differ from their own.  
 
Morecambe Bay: Section 5- OE Good  
 
They learn about differences and similarities in faiths and cultures. 
 
Oswaldtwistle St Andrews VC: Section 8 – remains a good school 
 
Balladen Rawtenstall: Section 5- OE Requires Improvement. 
 
Sabden: Section 8 – remains a good school 
 

Secondary 

21 secondary schools had reports published during this period, 3 of which were Lancashire community schools 
or voluntary controlled schools who had section 5 or section 8 inspections. 

Carr Hill Hall: Section 5 OE Requires Improvement 

Longridge High School: Section 5 OE Requires Improvement. 

Moor Park High: Section 5 OE Good 

Pupils learn about the cultures and beliefs of others. This helps them to understand the diversity of the world in 

which they live, 

Page 8



SACRE NEWSLETTER 

(Issue 9) Spring 2022 

Page 2 

The SACRE Annual Report  

Knowledge Organisers – want to share?  

Pupil Voice 

Belonging and Believing  

Festive Calendar 

Page 3 

School Website Monitoring  

Cumbria Development Education Centre  

Page 4 

NATRE 

Mirrors and Doors 

Religious Education in Special Schools 

Page 5 

Ofsted Research Review 

Cambridge in your Classroom  

Needing Help? 

Page 6 

Planning to visit a Mosque?  

Contents 

Twitter: Lancashire SACRE @LancsSACRE 

www.lancsngfl.ac.uk/curriculum/re 

A heads up! Lancashire SACRE intend to ask 

schools to submit their end of key stage attain-

ment data for religious education at the end of 

this academic year. This will be undertaken along-

side the annual school survey.   

 

At the start of the summer term, a letter will be 

sent to schools giving instructions on how to sub-

mit data for KS1 and KS2 by September '22.  An 

evaluation survey will be sent to secondary 

schools. 

 

To support schools in forming assessment judge-

ments against the Lancashire Agreed Syllabus, 

consultants will hold free training sessions for 

schools as follows. Both sessions will be hosted by 

Zoom: 
 

KS1 and KS2-- May 25th 2022 – 1.30- 3.30pm 

This session will provide resources to help schools 

secure their attainment data at the end of Y2 and 

Y6. 

Courses (lancashire.gov.uk)  

 

KS3 – May 25th 2022 – 3.30- 5.00pm  

This course will explore the principles of good as-

sessment for students at KS3.  

Course Details (lancashire.gov.uk)  

 

Both courses will be FREE and we suggest signing 

up to them as soon as you possibly can.  

REPORTING END OF KEY STAGE ATTAINMENT  

DATA FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION TO LANCASHIRE 

SACRE 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.lancsngfl.ac.uk/curriculum/re
https://lpds.lancashire.gov.uk/courses.asp?q=attainment+data
https://lpds.lancashire.gov.uk/course_details.asp?course=REL108&suffix=a&year=2022/2023
file://corpdata02.ad.lancscc.net/cyp/Advisory/Administration/SACRE/SACRE Syllabus 2021 (current)/2021 Syllabus Documents/Lancashire Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education 2021 V9.pdf


The SACRE Annual Report is now complete and is available to download from 

the SACRE website.  

Please follow this link  http://www.lancsngfl.ac.uk/curriculum/re/

index.php?category_id=135 

Many thanks to the schools who submitted information about 

the number of withdrawals from RE and Collective Worship. A 

brief overview of findings can be found in the annual report. 

The SACRE Annual Report  

An additional tab has been added to the RE 

website for teachers who wish to  share 

any of their knowledge organisers. Its al-

ways good to have WAGOLL when you are 

creating something new!  Please email  

advisory. support@lancashire.gov.uk   

Knowledge Organisers – want to 

share?  
Consultants have prepared a selection of 

questions for primary school subject lead-

ers who are monitoring the impact of the 

RE curriculum in their schools. The ques-

tions are designed to help teachers find 

out how much pupils know and remember 

in order to evaluate their levels of religious 

literacy.  

To download the resource please CLICK 

HERE (This is the document on the web-

site  

Pupil Voice  

This set of beautifully produced hard-
back books for leaners of all ages, is an 
essential resource to support under-
standing of the diversity of religion and 
worldviews.  Each book, written by Gill 
Vaisey, focusses on a five-year-old child 
within the family and includes simple 
text and full-page  photographs to illus-
trate aspects of the child’s and family’s 
everyday life.   
The main religions and world view are 
included. 
http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/

belongingandbelieving.html?

utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=ema

il&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_new

sletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_c

ontent=2021-12-22 

Belonging and Believing  

For an online Festivals Calendar click here!  

Festival Calendar - RE:ONLINE (reonline.org.uk)  

 

The Lancashire Forum of Faiths has also put 
together a one-page list of festivals in 2022. 

This can be found on our RE website.  

Please click here.  

Interfaith Resources (lancsngfl.ac.uk)  

Festive Calendar 

Page 10

http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/belongingandbelieving.html?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/belongingandbelieving.html?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/belongingandbelieving.html?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/belongingandbelieving.html?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/belongingandbelieving.html?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
http://www.booksatpress.co.uk/belongingandbelieving.html?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
https://www.reonline.org.uk/festival-calendar
http://www.lancsngfl.ac.uk/curriculum/re/index.php?category_id=133


To ensure you are fulfilling your statutory obligations you MUST publish on 

your website the content of your school curriculum in each academic year for 

every subject, including Religious Education.  

This document clarifies NATRE expectations for RE on school websites. This 

document is accessible via the RE website under the subject leader tab.  

 

School Website Monitoring  

Cumbria Development Education Centre (CDEC) and Cumbria SACRE have 

pulled together a collection of virtual tours of religious and spiritual sites to 

help RE teachers and students discover more about faith. There are also ideas 

for helping pupils search for and explore other sites too.  

Take a look!  

https://www.cdec.org.uk/use-our-resources/films-and-virtual-tours/virtual-tours  

Cumbria Development Education Centre  

Page 11



What are your views? 

Lancashire SACRE is keen to ensure 
that the agreed syllabus is easily ac-
cessible to teachers in special schools 
and can be readily adapted to fully 
meet the needs of pupils with special 
needs and/or disabilities. 

Members are keen to gather views 
from schools to ensure that any work 
undertaken to adapt materials and cre-
ate new resources is wise and appro-
priate.  

With this in mind, the SACRE would be 
grateful if special schools could com-
plete a very short questionnaire. This is 
being sent to schools via  the schools 
portal with a letter for the attention of 
the headteacher and subject lead for 
religious education.  

We ask that the click form is completed 
by Friday 11

th
 February 2022. 

Or paste this link in to your browser 

https://clickquestion.lancashire.gov.uk/
runQuestionnaire.asp?qid=871354  

Religious Education in Special 

Schools 

NATRE are providing regular online 

CPD with prices according to your NA-

TRE membership status 

Upcoming Courses & Events (natre.org.uk)  

 

 

 

NATRE 

SACRE have recently updated Lanca-

shire's collective worship guidance 

which can be found on the password 

protected tab in the RE website. 

The guidance includes ideas for 

themes, sample planning formats 

and a model policy.  

 

Mirrors and Doors – Lancashire's  

Collective Worship guidance. 

Page 12

https://www.natre.org.uk/courses-events/upcoming-courses-events/


For those who haven’t seen it, the re-

cently published Ofsted RE research re-

view is an important read. 

As it is a very long, for those with mem-

bership, NATRE have produced a two page 

precis which summaries the main points.  

 

Ofsted will publish a review of the quality 

of RE curriculums in spring term 2022. This 

will be based on ‘deep dives’ carried out 

during inspections under the EIF. 

 

Click here for David Lewin and Janet Or-

chard's blog about the research report on 

Religious Education.   

What’s ‘what’ in RE: Relating the 

what, the how and the why of curric-

ulum content. — After Religious Edu-

cation (squarespace.com)  

 Ofsted Research Review  

Finding the Agreed Syllabus a chal-

lenge? Not sure how to assess in RE?  

Needing to increase subject 

knowledge of a specific religion? 

Wanting to raise the profile of RE in 

your school? Committed to develop-

ing the effectiveness of the subject 

leader for Religious Education?  

 

To access support please contact:  

 

advisory.support@lancashire.gov.uk  

Needing Help? 

Experts from the Faculty of Divinity answer some of the big questions of reli-

gion, philosophy and ethics in this series of Cambridge in your Classroom. 

Aimed at students aged 14-18, Cambridge in Your Classroom is a joint project by 

the Faculty of Divinity and the Faculty of Education Religious Studies 

PGCE course. 

For further details please follow this link: 

https://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/study-here/open-days/cambridge-your-classroom?

utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_new

sletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22 

 

 

Cambridge in your Classroom  

Page 13

https://clicks.retoday-email.co.uk/email/S-3369@127308@aJCGSyowCsaT3DUww388RwvkclsbzrDhnT-t3vZZxoo.@
https://clicks.retoday-email.co.uk/email/S-3369@127308@aJCGSyowCsaT3DUww388RwvkclsbzrDhnT-t3vZZxoo.@
https://butterfly-butterfly-bnhl.squarespace.com/blog/whats-what-in-re-relating-the-what-the-how-and-the-why-of-curriculum-content?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_july_2021&utm_content=202
https://butterfly-butterfly-bnhl.squarespace.com/blog/whats-what-in-re-relating-the-what-the-how-and-the-why-of-curriculum-content?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_july_2021&utm_content=202
https://butterfly-butterfly-bnhl.squarespace.com/blog/whats-what-in-re-relating-the-what-the-how-and-the-why-of-curriculum-content?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_july_2021&utm_content=202
https://butterfly-butterfly-bnhl.squarespace.com/blog/whats-what-in-re-relating-the-what-the-how-and-the-why-of-curriculum-content?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_july_2021&utm_content=202
mailto:advisory.support@lancashire.gov.uk
http://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/
https://www.educ.cam.ac.uk/courses/pgce/secondary/religious/
https://www.educ.cam.ac.uk/courses/pgce/secondary/religious/
https://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/study-here/open-days/cambridge-your-classroom?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
https://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/study-here/open-days/cambridge-your-classroom?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22
https://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/study-here/open-days/cambridge-your-classroom?utm_source=emailmarketing&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=primary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_november_2021&utm_content=2021-12-22


This “Visiting a Mosque: RE Teachers Resources” pack is intended to support 
and empower Religious Education (RE) Teachers in organising and delivering 
school visits to Places of Worship such as mosques. Virtual mosque tours are in-
cluded.  
 

Click here for the resources  

RE Teachers Resources (visitmymosque.org)  
 

Planning to visit a Mosque?  

Page 14

read://https_www.visitmymosque.org/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.visitmymosque.org%2Ffor-re-teachers%2F%3Futm_source%3Demailmarketing%26utm_medium%3Demail%26utm_campaign%3Dprimary_natre_members_newsletter_with_download_january_2022%26utm_content%3D2022-01-04


 
 

 

 
Lancashire SACRE Development Plan  

2021-2023 
 

 
 

This Development Plan sets out SACRE's key priorities for improvement 
over the two years from 2021-2023 

Progress in implementing the plan is evaluated on an ongoing basis so 
that priorities can be adjusted and revised as needed.  

 
  

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

  

Key Priority 1 To raise standards by improving the quality of teaching, learning and assessment in Religious Education. 

  

 Relevant columns should be RAG rated at the end of each term to indicate what has been achieved, what is ongoing or has been 
started but not yet embedded and what has not yet been achieved. 

   

Measures of 
success. 

1.Leaders are clear about the standards and expectations within the Lancashire Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education 2021. They use this 
knowledge to construct a balanced curriculum which specifies how knowledge and skills are built on cumulatively towards clear end goals. 
2.Teachers have the subject knowledge needed to effectively implement the RE curriculum following the Field of Enquiry methodology and 
current national recommendations into effective pedagogy. A more formal method of school to school support is established. 
3.The LAS reflects the religious and non- religious traditions practised locally and nationally following the release of the 2021 census findings. 
4.Teachers make reliable assessment judgements at the end of each key stage prior to submission to the Local Authority. 
5.Leaders have the skills needed to continuously evaluate the quality of education in Religious Education and take action to address priorities for 
improvement.  
6.The Lancashire Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education is fully inclusive and meets the needs of vulnerable pupils and those with SEND. 
7. The effectiveness of the Lancashire Agreed Syllabus is evaluated annually by gathering the views of pupils (youth voice) and teachers. 

Success 
evaluated by:  

An annual report and monitoring report are shared with all Lancashire schools and published on the Lancashire RE/ SACRE website and 
NASACRE site annually. 
The impact of the action plan is evaluated once/ term by the full SACRE. 

 

Objectives Action / tasks Date  Lead 

 
 

Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance  

 

Success criteria 

 
Evaluation  

1.1 
Leaders are clear about 
the standards and 
expectations within the 
Lancashire Agreed 
Syllabus for Religious 
Education 2021. They 
use this knowledge to 
construct a balanced 
curriculum which 
specifies how 
knowledge and skills 
are built on 
cumulatively towards 
clear end goals. 

Launch the Lancashire Agreed Syllabus 
2021 across all schools. Separate 
training is provided for primary and 
secondary schools. 
 
Training focusses on statutory duties 
and the construction of the curriculum 
intent (knowledge, concepts, vocab and 
skills). 
Training is provided for out of authority 
schools that buy into the syllabus.   
The website password is changed in 
line with the new syllabus to ensure 
protected access to resources. 
 

By Dec 
21  

AL Evaluations following 
training are analysed and 
reported to the SACRE 
 
A selection of school 
websites are monitored 
by SACRE members to 
check for compliancy. 

Leaders are 
confident in 
constructing a well-
balanced RE. 
Knowledge builds on 
cumulatively towards 
clear end goals and 
ensures that pupils 
are 'secondary 
ready.' 

The NASACRE website 
evaluation tool is to be 
amended by the QSS 
committee to make it 
clearer and more user 
friendly. 

P
age 16



 
 

Objectives Action / tasks Date  Lead 

 
 

Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance  

 

Success criteria 

 
Evaluation  

1.2 
Teachers have the 
subject knowledge 
needed to effectively 
implement the RE 
curriculum following the 
Field of Enquiry 
methodology and 
current national 
recommendations into 
effective pedagogy. 
 
 

A suite of RE training is offered to 
schools by associate consultants: 
 

- Planning using the Field of 
Enquiry (focus ECM teachers 
and HLTAs)  

- 'Ways of knowing' RE – effective 
implementation.  

- Subject knowledge. 
 
Free network meetings are offered in 
the East, North and South of the county 
so that updates are shared in a timely 
manner. 
Sample knowledge organisers are 
uploaded to the website.  

By July 
2019  
 
 
 
 
 

AL Evaluations following 
training are analysed and 
reported to the SACRE 
 

Evaluation data 
shows that teachers 
are improving their 
subject knowledge 
and gaining 
confidence in the 
implementation of 
the syllabus. 

 

1.3 
The LAS reflects the 
religious and non- 
religious traditions 
practised locally and 
nationally following the 
release of the 2021 
census findings. 
 

Findings from the 2021 census are 
shared with the SACRE. 
Implications for the structure of the 
syllabus are discussed. 
 
RE consultants work on 
exemplifications for KS1 and KS3 which 
reflect any non-religious traditions. 

By July 
2022 

AL Census findings are 
discussed at SACRE 
level. 
 
New exemplifications are 
shared, ratified and 
uploaded to the website. 

The LAS ensures 
that pupils are 
prepared to take 
their place in today's 
diverse multi 
religious and multi 
secular society.  
 

 

1.4 
Teachers make reliable 
assessment 
judgements at the end 
of each key stage prior 
to submission to the 
Local Authority. 
 

Standards files are created to model 
different expectations along the line of 
progression.  

Sample assessment tasks are shared 
at network meetings  

Network meeting sessions are 
provided where standards can be 
moderated between schools. 

Assessment data is collected and 
analysed June 2022 and 2023. 

by July 
2022 

RECs 
/AL 

Standards files and 
assessment procedures 
are shared with SACRE. 
 
Attainment data is 
reported to the SACRE 
and Lancashire schools.  

Increasing 
proportions of 
teachers are 
confident in 
assessing 
achievement in RE.  
Assessment 
judgements are 
more reliably 
reported. 

Schools are aware that 
attainment data will be 
collected this year and 
have been informed 
about the training and 
resources that will be 
provided from May 22. 

P
age 17



 
 

Objectives Action / tasks Date  Lead 

 
 

Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance  

 

Success criteria 

 
Evaluation  

1.5 
Leaders have the skills 
needed to continuously 
evaluate the quality of 
education in Religious 
Education and take 
action to address 
priorities for 
improvement.  
 

Provide training for subject leaders on 
how to audit, monitor and evaluate the 
impact of the RE curriculum and set 
targets for improvement. 
 
A suite of monitoring and evaluation 
proformas are created and shared with 
teachers to support deep dive 
monitoring exercises. 
 

By Dec 
2022 

AL/R
ECS 

Evaluation feedback is 
shared with the SACRE. 
 
New materials are 
shared with the SACRE 

Leaders are 
confident in 
measuring the 
impact of the RE 
curriculum and using 
monitoring evidence 
to inform plans for 
improvement. 

 

1.6 
The Lancashire Agreed 
Syllabus for Religious 
Education is fully 
inclusive and meets the 
needs of pupils 
assessed to have 
special needs and/or 
disabilities. 

Provide training on the LAS for special 
schools.  Training focusses on how to 
successfully adapt lesson planning and 
lesson delivery without compromising 
on ambition. Schools are signposted to 
resources, ideas and further reading. 
 
Provide different models to show how 
planning can be adapted in response to 
different special needs.  

By Dec 
2022 

AL/SE
ND  

Evaluation feedback is 
shared with the full 
SACRE. 
 
New materials are 
shared with the SACRE 

The LAS is fully 
inclusive and can be 
easily adapted to 
meeting with needs 
of pupils who are 
assessed to have 
special needs and/or 
disabilities. 

A SEND survey has been 
sent to schools to start 
the process in addressing 
this target area. 

1.7 
The effectiveness of the 
Lancashire Agreed 
Syllabus is evaluated 
annually by gathering 
the views of pupils 
(youth voice) and 
adults. 

Surveys are distributed to schools and 
students annually, 
 
The findings are analysed and shared 
with the SACRE. 
Next steps are agreed and shared with 
stakeholders. 

Annually 
July 
2022 
and 
2023  

AL Survey findings are 
analysed by the SACRE 
and next steps agreed. 

The LA gathers, 
listens and responds 
to the views of 
stakeholders in 
order to continually 
evaluate the 
success of the LAS.  

 

 

Next Steps 

 

 
 

P
age 18



 
 

Key Priority 2 The SACRE works in effective partnership with the LA to monitor and evaluate standards and the quality of provision for RE in 
Lancashire schools  

  

 Relevant columns should be RAG rated at the end of each term to indicate what has been achieved, what has been started but not yet 
embedded and what has not yet been achieved. 

   
Measures of 
success. 

1. 2.1 The SACRE has robust processes in place to analyse standards at all key stages as well as examination entries in secondary schools. 
2. 2.2 The SACRE monitors the quality of provision in RE through undertaking school visits across a range of schools and key stages. 
3. 2.3 Youth voice events gather the views of pupils across all key stages. 

 

Success 
evaluated by: 

An annual report and monitoring report is shared with all Lancashire schools and published on the NASACRE site annually. 
The impact of the action plan is evaluated once/ term by the full SACRE. 

Objectives Action / tasks Start date  Lead 
 

Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance 

Milestone/Succes
s criteria 

Evaluation  

4. 2.1 
5. The SACRE has 

robust processes in 
place to analyse 
standards at all key 
stages as well as 
examination entries 
in secondary 
schools. 

Provide clear guidance to schools with 
regards to the attainment scores that will be 
collected at Y2, Y6, KS3 and KS4.  

 SACRE analyse submitted data to keep a 
check on standards across all key stages. 
Share standards with schools and compare 
with NATRE findings. 

Agree any implications and next steps.  

June 2022 
and June 

2023 

AL/PM Data is analysed and 
reported to the 

SACRE in September 
2022 and 2023 

Trends in 
achievement are 
monitored and 
strengths and 
weaknesses 
identified. 
Standards are 
maintained or 
improve. 

 

6. 2.2  
7. The SACRE 

monitors the quality 
of provision in RE 
through 
undertaking school 
visits across a 
range of schools 
and key stages. 

 

SACRE Continues to monitor RE via: 
- SACRE visits to a range of schools. 
- Data analysis  
- Evaluations and Feedback forms  
- Annual consultation 
- Monitoring of Ofsted reports to 

identify strengths and weaknesses 
across Lancashire. 

- Findings from the pupil attitude 
questionnaire 

- Feedback during Youth Voice 
events. 

- Analysis of any complaints. 
 

The SACRE agrees how to respond when a 
school is identified as not meeting its 

Termly  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed 
by April 
2022 

PM 

Visits findings are 
reported back to each 
SACRE meeting. 
 
Findings from all 
monitoring activities 
are added to an 
annual calendar and 
reported as they 
occur.  
 
Findings are reported 
to NASACRE/DFE via 
the annual report. 

Methods of 
monitoring provide 
the SACRE with a 
clear picture of 
standards and the 
quality of teaching, 
learning and 
assessment 
across Lancashire. 
 
SACRE responds 
quickly when 
statutory duties 
are not being 
fulfilled. 

 

P
age 19



 
 

statutory responsibilities. A ramped 
approach is agreed. 

8. 2.3 Youth voice 
events gather the 
views of pupils 
across all key 
stages. 

 

Working party established to agree an 
approach to Youth Voice. 
Pupils are consulted to establish which 
events they would find helpful. 
A calendar of activities is agreed. 
Schools are approached and events 
advertised. 
Events are published in the termly 
newsletter. 

Autumn 
2021 

PM/JH 

Pupil evaluations are 
shared with the full 
SACRE. 
SACRE members are 
represented at events 
and report back to the 
full council. 

Pupils have a 
voice in setting the 
direction for 
improvement for 
RE in Lancashire. 
Their views are 
listened to 
 
Pupils have 
ongoing 
opportunities to 
debate questions 
relating to RE with 
their peers. 

 

 

Next steps  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



 
 

 
 

Key Priority 3 To improve the provision of Collective Worship 

  

 Relevant columns should be RAG rated at the end of each term to indicate what has been achieved, what has been started but not yet 
embedded and what has not yet been achieved. 

   
Measures of 
success. 

3.1 The revised Mirrors and Doors materials are shared with schools. These include exemplar good practice materials 

Success 
evaluated by: 

An annual report and monitoring report is shared with all Lancashire schools and published on the NASACRE site annually. 
The impact of the action plan is evaluated once/ term by the full SACRE. 

 

Objectives Action / tasks Start date  Lead 

 
Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance 

 

Milestone/Succes
s criteria 

 
Evaluation 

3.1 
The revised 
Mirrors and 
Doors materials 
are shared with 
schools. These 
include 
exemplar good 
practice 
materials 

The CW policy and guidelines are updated, 
shared with the SACRE and uploaded to the 
website. 
 
Materials are advertised in the autumn term 
newsletter. 
 
Teachers are invited to submit good CW 
exemplars which are shared with schools. 
 
SACRE members visit CW during school visits, 
and feedback to the full council. 
 
Teacher's confidence and skills in planning, 
delivering and monitoring CW is surveyed 
during the annual consultation.  
 

August 
2021 
 
Autumn 
Newsletter 
 
Annual 
evaluation 

AL School visits are 
reported to the full 
SACRE. 
 
Evaluations are 
shared with the full 
SACRE.  
 
 

The Mirrors and 
Doors materials 
helps schools to 
deliver effective 
collective worship 
in line with their 
vision thereby 
contributing to the 
development of 
SMSC and British 
Values across 
Lancashire. 

 

 

Next steps  
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 21



 
 

Key Priority 4 To ensure that the SACRE is effectively managed and works in close cooperation with the LA and other key stakeholders. 

  

 Relevant columns should be RAG rated at the end of each term to indicate what has been achieved, what has been started but not yet 
embedded and what has not yet been achieved. 

   
Measures of 
success. 

4.1 SACRE meetings are purposeful and well represented. 
4.2 The SACRE builds positive relationship with academies across Lancashire. 

Success 
evaluated by: 

An annual report and monitoring report is shared with all Lancashire schools and published on the NASACRE site annually. 
The impact of the action plan is evaluated once/ term by the full SACRE. 

 

Objectives Action / tasks 
Start 
date  

Lead 

 
Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance 

 

Milestone/Succes
s criteria 

 

4.1 
SACRE 
meetings are 
purposeful and 
well 
represented. 
 

 Actively recruit members to fill vacancies 
and ensure that all major local religious 
communities are represented of the 
SACRE e.g. Sikh Dharam,  

 Apply the agreed attendance policy as 
needed.  

 Vary venue e.g. County Hall, Zoom, places 
of worship. 

 Ensure that each meeting includes time for 
social networking. 

 

Ongoing  Democrati
c 
Services/ 
Chair 

Annual feedback and 
consultation with 
SACRE members – 
views gathered and 
analysed via 
electronic poll. 
 
Attendance of 
members is monitored 
and analysed.  

SACRE meetings 
are efficient, 
representative, 
engaging, & 
productive.   
All members feel 
included and that 
their views are 
considered and 
respected. 

 

4.2 
Consideration is 
given to how 
SACRE can 
build a positive 
relationship with 
academies 
across 
Lancashire. 
 

 The Lancashire Agreed Syllabus will be 
promoted in all academies – e.g. 
flier/newsletter/ order form.  

 The views of academies who buy into the 
syllabus will be gathered on an annual basis so 
that they can regard themselves as 
stakeholders and partners with the SACRE. 

 
 
 
 
 
June 
2018  

AL/ PM Academies data base 
shared with the full 
SACRE. 
Views analysed and 
feedback provided to 
the full SACRE.  

The SACRE 
develops a 
positive 
partnership with 
local academies. 
 
Increasing 
proportions of 
academies buy 
into the syllabus 
and see 
themselves as key 
stakeholders. 

 

 
 

P
age 22



 
 

Measures of 
success 2021-
2023 

 

 
 
 

Key Priority 5 To reinforce the close link between the teaching of religious education, promotion of British Values and development of Spiritual, 
Moral, Social and Cultural development.  

  

 Relevant columns should be RAG rated at the end of each term to indicate what has been achieved, what has been started but not yet 
embedded and what has not yet been achieved. 

   
Measures of 
success. 

5.1 The SACRE works closely with the EMAGRT team and Building Bridges to promote community cohesion, and inclusion regardless of religion 
and belief within a climate of mutual respect and tolerance.  
5.2 Schools are confident in planning for progressively deeper opportunities to promote spiritual development. 

Success 
evaluated by: 

An annual report and monitoring report is shared with all Lancashire schools and published on the NASACRE site annually. 
The impact of the action plan is evaluated once/ term by the full SACRE. 

 

Objectives Action / tasks Start date  Lead 

 
Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance 

 

Milestone/Success 
criteria 

Evaluation  

5.1 The criteria for the Religion and 
Belief quality mark are shared with 
SACRE members. Feedback is 
given. 
The quality mark is promoted via the 
SACRE website.  
 
Enhancing the quality and impact of 
RE; Building Bridges will offer a SLA 
to schools to promote cohesion, inter 
faith dialogue, and religious literacy 

Septembe
r 21 

PM Reports are provided to 
SACRE from Building 
Bridges at each termly 
meeting.  

SACRE actively supports 
the work of other 
Lancashire agencies in 
promoting inclusion, mutual 
tolerance and respect. 
 
 

Number of schools 
engaged; number of events; 
training opportunities 
provided. 

 

5.2  Schools are signposted to resources 
to support them in: 

- Defining spirituality 
- agreeing an approach to 

planning 

Sept 22 AL The annual survey includes 
an evaluation on school's 
confidence in planning to 
promote spiritual 
development. 
 

Leaders and teachers are 
confident in planning for the 
development of spirituality 
both within RE lessons and 
across the wider curriculum.  
 

 

P
age 23



 
 

Objectives Action / tasks Start date  Lead 

 
Monitoring/ Quality 
assurance 

 

Milestone/Success 
criteria 

Evaluation  

-  ensuring that spiritual 
development is progressive. 

- Gathering evidence to ensure 
consistency.  

 
Advice is provided for schools on the 
how to create opportunities for 
spirituality through the teaching of 
RE. This is interwoven within each 
RE course. 
 
Good examples are shared on the 
RE website  

Resources are shared with 
the SACRE. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

P
age 24



SCHOOL VISITS TO PLACES OF 
WORSHIP IN BIRMINGHAM

  A resource to encourage children to be curious and reflective by focusing on the imagery, 
heritage and culture of six places of worship, to see similarities and to celebrate differences.

Supported by a generous grant from Westhill Endowment Trust,The Arts Society 
Birmingham has collaborated with six different places of worship, Birmingham Faith 
Leaders and other organisations to produce resources designed to enhance a school 
visit, or to support a virtual visit, to a place of worship for children 8 to 13 years.

Films: 3 x 4 min 
Classroom Clips of:

• Virtual Tour of the 

building

• The Faith and Worship

• Links with community

 ( Sept 2021)

Illustrated guide and 
quiz online and printed

(Sept 2021)

Additionally, relevant to all 
faiths there are ideas for 
arts-related cross-
curricular activities 
relating to:

•  Awe and Wonder

•  Heritage and Culture

•  Creative arts

•  Service and Charity

( March 2022)

St. Philip’s Cathedral

Shri Venkateswara (Balaji )Temple

Birmingham Progressive Synagogue

Birmingham Buddhist Vihara

For each place of worship the resources include:

A VISIT TO A JE
WISH PLA

CE OF W
ORSHIP

BIRMINGHAM PROGRESSIVE SYNAGOGUE

1 R
ose

lan
d W

ay,
   B

irm
ing

ha
m   B

15
 1H

D

Welc
ome t

o Birm
ingham

 Progres
siv

e S
yn

ag
ogue (

BPS)

ENTRANCE HALL

A sy
nag

ogue is
 th

e J
ew

ish
 pla

ce 
of 

wors
hip

. T
his

 

is o
ne

 of
 th

ree
 sy

na
go

gu
es 

in B
irm

ing
ha

m. It
 is 

a 

lib
era

l o
r p

rogres
siv

e s
yn

ag
ogue. 

The
 ot

he
r tw

o 

are
 Orth

od
ox.

 The
 an

ces
tra

l ho
me o

f th
e J

ew
s is

 

the
 lan

d o
f Is

rae
l. L

ibe
ral

 Ju
da

ism
 is 

a m
od

ern
 fo

rm
 

of 
Jud

ais
m. 

The
 Prog

res
siv

e J
ew

ish
 co

mmun
ity 

was 
fou

nd
ed

 in 

19
35

. T
he

 sy
na

go
gu

e u
sed

 to
 be

 in 
She

ep
cot

e 

Stre
et 

bu
t th

is p
urp

ose
 bu

ilt s
yna

go
gu

e w
as 

op
en

ed
 

in 2
00

8. 
Jew

ish
 pe

op
le c

om
e t

o t
he

 sy
na

go
gu

e t
o 

pra
y, t

o le
arn

 an
d t

o m
ee

t e
ach

 ot
he

r.
Th

e w
ay

 th
e b

uil
din

g i
s l

aid
 ou

t d
em

on
str

ate
s t

he
 th

ree
 pu

rpo
se

s. 

Th
e C

ommunity
 R

oom (B
eit 

Kness
et) 

is 
ba

se
d o

n t
he

 gr
ou

nd
 

flo
or.

 Th
e H

ouse
 of L

earn
ing ( 

Beit 
Midra

sh
) i

s o
n t

he
 fir

st 
flo

or 

an
d t

he
 H

ouse
 of P

ra
ye

r (
Beit 

Tefil
lah) i

s o
n t

he
 up

pe
r f

loo
r. 

‘Beit’
 is

 H
eb

rew
 fo

r ‘H
ou

se
’. W

ors
hip

 is
 in

 H
eb

rew
, w

hic
h i

s o
ne

 of
 

the
 la

ng
ua

ge
s s

po
ke

n i
n m

od
ern

 Is
rae

l, a
nd

 al
so

 in
 En

gli
sh

.

 The
 pla

qu
e (

lef
t) c

ele
bra

tes
 th

e 

op
en

ing
 of

 BPS in 
20

08
, a

nd
 

the
re 

are
 tw

o b
oa

rds
 with 

the
 

na
mes 

of 
the

 sy
na

go
gu

e 

pre
sid

en
ts f

rom
 19

35
.

The
 Tr

ee
 of R

em
em

bran
ce

 was 
de

sig
ne

d b
y 

Harr
y S

ea
ge

r, w
ho

 was 
a p

rof
ess

ion
al s

cul
pto

r 

an
d m

em
be

r o
f 

the
 sy

na
go

gu
e. 

The
 lea

ves
 

com
mem

ora
te 

som
e lo

ved
 

on
es.

This
 pla

qu
e c

om
mem

ora
tes

 th
e 6

 

millio
n J

ew
s w

ho
 were

 kil
led

 in 
the

 

Holo
cau

st i
n t

he
 Seco

nd
 W

orl
d W

ar 

be
twee

n 1
94

1 a
nd

 19
45

The
re 

is a
lso

 a 
sho

p 

cab
ine

t w
he

re 
we c

an
 

bu
y J

ew
ish

 ite
ms. T

he
re 

are
 no

 sh
op

s s
elli

ng
 

Jew
ish

 ar
tef

act
s lo

cal
ly.

C.D
av

is

T. 
Murt

ag
h

http
s:/

/birm
ingham

-fa
ith

-vi
sit

s.t
hea

rts
so

cie
ty.

org/

Pag
e 1

 of
 4

A VISIT TO A JE
WISH PLACE OF WORSHIP

SINGERS HILL SYNAGOGUE

Ellis 
Street, B

irm
ingham B1 1HL

Welcome to Singers Hill S
ynagogue

This s
ynagogue was d

esig
ned by th

e arch
itect, 

Henry Y
eoville

 

Thomason (1826-1901) and co
mpleted in 1856. H

e later 

desig
ned Birm

ingham Museum and Art G
allery. 

Singers H
ill, 

known as a
 ‘Cathedral Synagogue’, is

 the largest V
icto

rian 

syn
agogue sti

ll in
 daily u

se in the UK. Synagogue co
mes fr

om 

the Greek w
ord for assembly. Synagogues a

re where Je
wish

 

people co
me to pray a

nd also
 to meet each other.

Singers H
ill is

 an Orthodox S
ynagogue. O

rthodox J
ews p

ractis
e 

Jewish
 Law as w

ritte
n in the Five

 Books 
of M

oses. T
hese are 

writte
n in Hebrew which

 is 
one of th

e languages o
f Is

rael, 

spoken by J
ews.  

Jews s
how great re

spect f
or th

e Holy O
ne 

and use the word HaShem which
 is 

Hebrew for The Name.

CHILDREN’S SYNAGOGUE

When people face the Ark t
hey a

re facin
g east in

 the directio
n of Je

rusalem, th
e ca

pital of Is
rael. 

‘Ark’ co
mes fr

om Aron Kodesh which
 means ‘H

oly C
abinet’. I

t is
 named after th

e wooden ch
est w

hich
 

held the sto
ne tablets o

n which
 were writte

n the Te
n Commandments a

nd 613 laws g
ive

n to Moses 

on Mount Sinai in
 Egypt over 3000 ye

ars a
go. The Ark c

ontains th
e Torah Scrolls. To

rah means 

‘teaching’ in Hebrew.  T
he Scro

lls t
ell th

e sto
ry o

f th
e Je

ws fr
om the firs

t Je
w, Abraham, to

 the arriv
al 

of th
e Je

ws in
 the Promise

d Land led by M
oses w

ho had taken them out of sl
avery i

n Egypt.

The Ten 

Commandments 

are rules fo
r liv

ing 

a good life
.

This H
ebrew writin

g

in English
 means


“Know before whom you 

stand”.

Jewish
 people know they 

are sta
nding before 

HaShem and His L
aw.


Hebrew is 
writte

n fro
m 

right to
 left.

The Everla
sting Light 

(“N
er Ta

mid” in
 Hebrew), 

represents H
aShem’s li

ght 

over H
is L

aw.


Star o
f D

avid This h
exagon 

of in
tertw

ined tria
ngles h

as 

become a sy
mbol of th

e 

Jewish
 Community. 

Today 

it a
ppears o

n the National 

Flag of Is
rael.


Curta
in outside of th

e Ark 

This is
 a sig

n of re
spect fo

r 

the To
rah Scrolls i

nsid
e.


A VISIT TO BIRMINGHAM BUDDHIST VIHARA

DHAMMA TALAKA PAGODA, 

29-31 Osler Street, Ladywood, Birmingham B16 9EU

A Vihara is a Buddhist temple where 

everyone can find peace and contentment.

Buddhism is one of the world’s largest 

religions. There are over 500 million 

Buddhists across the 

globe.

In 1975, Dr Rewata 

Dhamma, an 

international scholar, 

was invited to 

Birmingham where he 

established a Buddhist 

pagoda. It i
s a place 

where Buddhists can 

hear the teachings of 

Buddha, perform 

ceremonies and meditate. In addition to the pagoda, there is also a monastery 

where the monks live and an academy where people can learn about the 

teachings of Buddha. 

THE STORY OF THE BUDDHA

About 2600 years ago, an Indian prince called Siddartth
a Gautama said  

goodbye to his family, a
ll his possessions and a life

 of luxury in his palace in 

north India to become a holy man. He was shocked by seeing the suffering 

of old people, the sick and the dying outside the palace. He wanted to find a 

way of ending suffering. 

Guided by holy men, he denied himself fo
od and drink but this made him ill. 

He realised that it 
was a mistake not to look after himself. T

he problem of 

suffering would not be solved by going to extremes. He vowed to find a 

‘Middle Way’. He spent many days meditating (concentrating), thinking 

deeply about the meaning of life
, while sittin

g in the shade of a Bodhi tre
e. 

He found the tru
th about life

. He became enlightened. He saw that th
e 

path to reduce suffering is through wisdom, morality and meditation. He 

became The Buddha. He was a great teacher and those who follow his main 

teachings are known as Buddhists.
‘May everyone be well, h

appy and peaceful’ – the Buddha

The Dhamma Telaka Pagoda was 

opened in 1998. The design is based on 

a traditional pagoda (known as a stupa) 

found in Myanmar  (w
hich used to be 

called Burma). This is shown in red on 

the map. The countries shown in yellow, 

orange and red are where Buddhism is 

the main religion.

EXPLORING BIRMINGHAM BUDDHIST VIHARA

Dr Rewata Dhamma

Monastery and Dr Rewata 

Dhamma Academy

Myanmar

China

India

https://birm
ingham-faith-visits.theartssociety.org/

Page 1 of 4

Page  of 41

A VISIT TO A CHRISTIAN PLACE OF WORSHIP

BIRMINGHAM CATHEDRAL

Colmore Row  Birmingham   B3 2QB

Welcome to St Philip’s Cathedral in Birmingham

B-0irmingham is known as the ‘Second City’ of the United Kingdom - second to London. A 

thousand years ago, Birmingham used to be a village. As it grew and many trades were developed, 

people moved from the countryside to find work. Birmingham needed another church in which 

Christians could worship because, by 1700, the population had grown to 15,000.

The Phillips family gave some land on top of a hill for a new 

church to be built. The church was designed by an architect, 

Thomas Archer, who was inspired by grand designs he had seen 

in churches when he travelled to Italy as a young man.

This wonderful church opened in 1715. It w
as called St Philip’s 

in honour of the family. The town continues to grow and nearly 

200 years later, the church became a cathedral in a town that 

became a city.

Birmingham was 

known as the ‘City of 

1,000 trades’. It w
as 

famous for metalwork 

and jewellery.Today, 

over one million people 

from many different 

cultures have made 

Birmingham their 

home.

The Bell To
wer at the west end.

North Prospect W
.Westley 1732. Photo R.Jones

The Bishop of Birmingham was 

appointed by the Queen to take 

charge of the Diocese of 

Birmingham. A Diocese is a district 

of the Church of England. This 

diocese was created in 1905 and 

stretches beyond Birmingham to 

include nearly 200 churches. Every 

Diocese has a cathedral as its main 

church. In 1905, St Philip’s Church 

became Birmingham Cathedral.

The Bishop attends ceremonies in the 

cathedral when he wears special robes 

and a headdress called a mitre. He 

carries a staff which is the symbol of 

a ‘Good Shepherd’. In the cathedral, 

the Bishop has a throne which is 

called a cathedra. Can you see 

the mitre on the Birmingham 

Diocese Coat of Arms?

The Dean is in
 charge of the cathedral. 

Here is D
ean Matt Thompson who leads a 

team of cle
rgy, st

aff and volunteers at the 

cathedral. They su
pport everyone who 

worships here. They 

organise the calendar of 

service
s and special 

events, lo
ok after this 

beautiful building and 

work cl
osely w

ith 

organisations in the city
 

and people of other 

faiths.

The Diocese of Birmingham and the Bishop

The Cathedral and the Dean

A VISIT TO A SIKH GURDWARA served by 

GURU NANAK NISHKAM SEWAK JATHA 

18-20 Soho Road, Handsworth, Birmingham B21 9BH

WELCOME TO THE GURDWARA!

A guiding motto for the Sikh way of life is: Pray, Work and Share.

The Gurdwara (sometimes spelt Gurudwara) is a 

Sikh place of worship. It is open to visitors of any 

faith, culture, gender or background. ‘Sikh’ means 

life-long learner or disciple. The gurdwara is like a 

school to remind us of life’s greater purpose. Sikhs 

come here to learn the values of being prayerful, 

hardworking and selfless, by listening to wise 

teachings, singing God’s praises and serving 

Gods’ creation.

AT THE FRONT ENTRANCE

           
           

               

 
           

           
           

      

           
           

        

Visitors may notice this Khanda emblem. It has three parts reminding Sikhs 

that: 
- God has no beginning or end and embraces all creation (the circle)

- We must strive to uphold goodness and remember God’s infinite power 

(the double-edged sword in the middle)

- We must let the strength of wisdom and goodness guide our actions in the 

world (the two outer kirpans or ‘swords of grace and dignity’).

Find this emblem:  

This Sikh emblem, pronounced Ik Oankar, is in 

the Gurmukhi script. It tells us that God is One 

and All is God, since the Creator is ever present 

in creation.- . ‘ Ik ’ in Punjabi  means ‘one’.

‘Guru’ means teacher or enlightener. 

‘Dwar’ means gateway.  ‘Gurdwara’ or 

‘gurudwara’  means gateway to the Guru’s 

home. Inside the Gurdwara you will find the 

sacred scripture, which Sikhs regard and 

treat as ‘Guru’.

THE DOORS

THE KHANDA 

IN THE LOBBY

You may hear Guru Granth Sahib Ji (the sacred scripture) being 

recited. Look out for Sikhs exchanging greetings with folded hands.

One short greeting - ‘Sat Siri Akal’ - reminds Sikhs that 

God is Truth and that God’s spark is in each person you greet.

Did you also notice people touching the outside steps as they enter, or 

dusting shoes on the shelves? This shows respect and honour to those 

who have come to pay respects to the Guru. Page 1 of 4

https://birmingham-faith-visits.theartssociety.org/

                      
                      

                      
                      

       

www.theartssocietybirmingham.org

Page  of 1 4

A VISIT TO A MUSLIM PLACE OF WORSHIP

BIRMINGHAM CENTRAL MOSQUE

180 Belgrave Middleway, Birmingham B12 0XS

W
Welcome to Central Mosque, Birmingham

Central Mosque is a an Islamic place of worship for 

Muslims .  ‘Islam’ comes from the Arabic word ‘ 

salama’ which means ‘peace’. A Muslim is a person 

who follows the religion of Islam. It is the second 

largest religion in the world.

In 1969 a decision was taken to build a mosque for 

the large community of Muslims in Birmingham. It 

took hard work and fundraising and in 1975, it was 

completed. 
It is one of the largest mosques in Europe and the 

UK with space for 6000 people. Central Mosque 

takes a leading role in uniting the Muslim 

Community. It has served the community well but in 

2021, a major programme is underway to enlarge 

and upgrade the building. 

The two symbols which identify this 

mosque in Birmingham are the 

dome and the minarets. These will 

still be a feature of the new building.

ENTRANCES 

There are separate entrances for men and for women. 

Some House Rules:

Shoes are removed as a mark of respect. 

Ladies cover their heads. 

Men are recommended to wear a hat.

People are quiet and calm in the mosque.

The dome represents the heavens. The minaret was traditionally 

used by a Muezzin. This is a person who makes an Arabic call to 

prayer. He would call the worshippers to the mosque reminding 

them to pray five times a day.

                

Devotees and visitors are welcomed by rangoli. 
These are traditional patterns made in 

bright colours on the ground at the 
entrance. In India, the patterns may be 

made in petals, coloured flour and rice at 
the entrance to homes. Here they are 

made in paints and chalks.

The East Tower creates 
a grand entrance.  It is 
the tallest building and 
acts like a beacon 
guiding people to the 
temple. At Balaji, priests 
live here.  Priests are 
scholars of Sanskrit, an 
ancient Indian language 
in which the Hindu holy 
books are written.

A VISIT TO A HINDU PLACE OF WORSHIP
SHRI VENKATESWARA (BALAJI) TEMPLE
Dudley Road East, Tividale, Oldbury, Birmingham B69 3DU

WELCOME TO THE BALAJI TEMPLE

AT THE ENTRANCE

There are two carved 
elephants at the 
entrance. In the Hindu 
religion, elephants are 
sacred animals, 
respected for their 
strength, gentleness and 
intelligence.  These elephants 
are used for ceremonial 
processions and special 
events.

When preparing for worship, a coconut is broken near this stone block as a 
symbol of getting rid of your 'outer shell' and being your true self. Everyone 

wears modest dress and removes their shoes as a sign of respect.

This is an example of Sanskrit
and means “you are welcome”.

The temple is a place of peace and provides space for prayer and meditation.  
There is the main temple, some shrines, a community centre and the Gandhi Peace Centre.
People of all faiths and backgrounds are welcome.  All are equal. 

Find
 India

on a map
of the world

Balaji Temple in Oldbury is a Hindu place of worship. Hinduism is one of the world’s oldest religions 
and is the largest religion in India where it began over 4000 years ago.  The name ‘Hindu’ comes from 
the river Sindhu in the Indus valley in northern India. In 1995, Hindus in the region raised money to 
buy some land and to build Balaji Temple to serve the community.  It is built in the style of Tirupathi 
(meaning ‘heaven on earth’) the most visited temple in India.

https://birmingham-faith-visits.theartssociety.org/ Page 1 of 4

Resources for schools: 
https://birmingham-faith-visits.theartssociety.org/

See the website for each place of worship for further information on school visits. 
For all resources:


 https://birmingham-faith-visits.theartssociety.org/ 

Gurdwara served by GNNSJ

Birmingham Central Mosque

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



Page 26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 November 2021
	3 RE Update Report
	4 SACRE Newsletter - Spring 2022
	5 SACRE Development Plan 2021-2023
	8 Correspondence

